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THEREUNDER -

1. For the quarterly period ended ...................... June 30, 2017

2. Cotnmission identification number................ : AS094004462

3. BIR Tax Identification NO.....cccoerveevevsersat 043-000-426}-523-V
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, IN|

Taguig City, Philippines

Industry Classification Code: l (SEC Use Only)

Address of issuer's principal office
16/FAlliance Global Towet, 36" St. cor. 11* Ave. Uptown
Postal Code: 1634

Issuet's telephone number, including area code
Tel. No. (632) 328-4370 to 78

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code,
RSA
Number of shates of]

Province, countty ot other jurisdiction of incotporation or organi

ot Sections 4 and 8 of the

common stock outstanding

Title of each class and amount ¢f debt outstanding
Common stock 10,986,000,00(

Loans payable £ 3,599,198,718

Bonds payable 2-

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [X] No [ ]

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es d

Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)

f securities listed therein:

Common dtock




12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

() has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11
26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippine]
(12) months (or for such shorter petriod the registr;
reports)

Yes [X] No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the pasi

Yes [X] No [ ]
PART I--FINANCIAL INFORMATT

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Please refer to attached Annex A-1 for the Consolidated St
as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016; Annex A-2 for th
Comptehensive Income for the six-month period ended June 30, 2
A-3 for Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Eq
ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016; Annex A-4 for the Cor
Flows for the six-month petiod ended June 30, 2017 and June 30,
Aging of Receivables for the 2nd Quatter ended June 30, 2017.

b

N
L

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial (
Operations.

Refer to attached Analysis of Operations.
PART II--OTHER INFORMATIO

Not Applicable.
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulatio]
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned the

Principal Financial/Accounting Officer/

Controller/Authotized Representative : ]

Ms. Lailani V. Villany

of the Code and SRC Rule 17
(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections
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during the preceding twelve
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atements of Financial Position
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hity for the six-month petiod
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2016 and Annex A-5 for the

ondition and Results of
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n Code, the issuer has duly
eunto duly authorized.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE 2nd QUARTER ENDED June 30, 2017

REVIEW OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated revenues for the six-month period ended June 30,

2017 amounted to Php3.17

billion with an increase of 10.8% compared to Php2.86 billion in J{ine 30, 2016. The Company’s

real estate sale of Php2.13 billion came mainly from sale of lots in
Newcoast Village in Malay, Aklan, Sta. Barbara Heights in Iloilo

Newcoast Shophouse District,
City, Twin Lakes Domaine Le

Jardin and Lucerne at Domaine Le Jardin in Laurel, Batangas, Jahara at Manila Southwoods,

Alabang West in Daang Hari, Las Pifias and sale of condominium
Residences, Savoy Hotel, Belmont Hotel and Chancellor Hotel
Manila Southwoods and The Vineyard Residences in Twin Lales, Laurel Batangas.

units in Newcoast Oceanway
in Boracay, Holland Park in
Rental

Income as of June 30, 2017 amounted to Php55.6 million, an iffcrease of 44% from Php38.7
million as of June 30, 2016 due to increase on lease of commercial space. Realized gross profit

on prior yeats’ real estate sales amounted to Php490.2 million

as of June 30, 2017 with an

increase of 109% compared to Php234.4 million as of June 30, 20
30, 2017 amounted to Php186.9 million, a decrease of 8.4% from

6 . Hotel revenues as of June
Php204.1 million as of June

30, 2016 due to decrease in occupancy rate. Balance of revenues wias contributed by finance and
other income of Php242.5 million and Php62.5 million service income.

Cost and expenses posted an increase of Php104.4 million or 4.4%
30, 2016 to Php2.5 billion as of June 30, 2017 mainly due to cost

from Php2.39 billion in June
of real estate sales, opetating

expenses and income tax expense.

The company posted a Php670 million Net Income or 44% incrdase for the six-month period
ended June 30, 2017, as compared to a Php465.3 million net incom realized as of June 30, 2016,

mainly due to realized gross profit on prior year sales.

Major Movements of Income Statement Accounts are as follows:

estate sales — due to increase

income from golf course

® 44% Increase in Rental income - mainly due to increase in dccupancy of leasable atea

¢ 8% Decrease in Hotel revenues - due to decrease in hotel o¢cupancy rate.

® 109% Increase in Realized gross profit on prior years’ real
in percentage of completion of on-going projects

e 19% Increase in Setvice income - due to increase in
maintenance

¢ 18% Increase in Finance and other income - due to increage in realized interest income
from amottization of installment contract receivables.

® 22% Increase in Cost of real estate sales - due to increase in project development cost
of sales recognized for the petriod.

® (% Increase in Cost of services — due to increase in service income

42% Decrease in Deferred gross profit on real estate sdles — mainly due to higher

percentage of completion of projects that recognized sales for the period.




20% Increase in Operating expenses — mainly due to inctease in commission expenses
and other administrative expenses. '
10% Increase in Finance cost and other charges — mainly fue to increase in interest and
other charges.

31% Increase in Income tax expense — due to increase in taxable income

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Group’s financial position remained stable. Total assets as of
compared to Php44.4 billion as of December 31, 2016, posted an if

June 30, 2017, Php45.5 billion
ncrease of Php1.1 billion.

Cash and cash equivalents decteased by 40% mainly due to payfnent to contractors/suppliers
and partial payment of Interest-bearing loans and botrowings, fromn P3.1 billion in December 31,

2016 to P1.9 billion in June 30, 2017. Trade and other receivabiles increased by 11% due to
installment sales booked for the period, from Php7.8 billion in Degember 2016 to Php8.7 billion
in June 2017. Real estate and resorts shares for sale increased by 5%, from Php13.2 billion as of
December 31, 2016 to Php13.9 billion as of June 30, 2017, mainly due to land cost of projects
being developed and additional construction costs. Investment properties increased by 27%,
from Php3.1 billion in December 2016 to Php3.9 billion in June 2017, due to additional
construction cost of building intended for lease.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings decreased from Php3.9 bil
Php3.6 billion as of June 2017 due to partial payment of interest
payables increased by 15%, from Php2.5 billion in December 201
2017, mainly due to increase in payables to contractors and

increased from Php1.7 billion in December 2016 to Php1.9 billio
due to collection from existing buyers and new treservation sales fi
related parties increased by 6% due to additional advances fro

ion as of December 2016 to

earing loan. Trade and other
to Php2.8 billion as of June
ppliers. Customet’s deposit
in June 2017 or 9% increase
r the period. Advances from
parent company. Deferred

income on real estate sales decreased by 5% due to increase in peticentage of completion of on-
going projects. Due to joint venture partners decreased by 20% due to payment to joint venture
partners. Deferred Tax Liability also increased from Php543.3 rhillion in December 2016 to
Php726.4 million in June 2017. The 34% increase is due to ifcrease in taxable temporary
difference. Other non-current liabilities increased from Php1.06 billion as of December 2016 to
Php1.20 billion as of June 2017 mainly due to additional accrupl of interest on redeemable
preferred shares and increase in retention payable.

billion in December 2016 to
r the period.

Shareholders’ Equity increased by Php0.87 billion from Php27.5
Php28.4 billion in June 2017 mainly due to the income generated fg

Major movements of Balance Sheet Accounts are as follows:

in Cash and cash equivalents mainly due

. Decrease

40%

contractors/suppliers and partial payment of principal o

to  payment
h Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.
11% Increase in Trade and other receivables — due to installment sales booked during the

period.




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

5% Increase in Real estate and resorts shares for sale -
projects being developed and additional construction costs
27% Increase in Investment properties — due to increase i}
intended for lease.

8% Dectease in Interest bearing loans and borrowings
principal of interest bearing loan

15% Increase in Trade payables — mainly due to increase §
suppliers
9% Increase in Customet’s deposit — due to collection f
reservation sales for the petiod.
6% Increase in Advances from related parties — due to ad
company.
5% Decrease in Deferred income — due to increase in pef
going projects.

20% Decrease in Due to joint venture partners — due
partners.

34% Increase in Deferred tax liability — due to increase in ta
16% Increase in Other non-curtent liabilities — due to ad

tedeemable preferred shares and increase in retention payah)

mainly due to land cost of

construction cost of building

— due to partial payment of

n payables to contractors and

rom existing buyets and new

ditional advances from parent

centage of completion of on-

to payment to joint venture

xable temporary diffetence.

ditional accrual of interest on

le

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Current Ratio 3.16 3.31
Quick Ratio 0.83 0.94

Current Ratio (Current Assets/ Current Liabilities)
Liquidity ratio measures a company’s ability to pay short-ter:

Quick Ratio (Cash and cash equivalents + Current Trade receivablg
It measures a company’s ability to meet its short-term obligg
assets.

m obligations.

s/ Current Liabilities)
tions with its most liquid




LEVERAGE OR LONG-RANGE SOLYVI

ENCY RATIOS

June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Debt to Total Assets 38% 38%
Equity to Total Assets 62% 62%
Debt to Equity 61% 61%
Asset to Equity 1.61 1.61
Debt to Total Assets

It shows the creditors’ contribution to the total resources off the organization.

Eqguity to Total Assets

It shows the extent of owners’ contribution to the total rekources of the organization.

Debt to Equity

It relates the exposure of the creditors to that of the owners.

Asset To Equity (Lotal Assets/ Total Owner’s Equity)
It measures the company’s leverage.

PROFITABILITY RATIOS
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Return on Equity 2.96% 1.80%
Return on Assets 1.52% 0.94%
Earnings per Share £0.063 0.036

Return on Equity (Net Income/ Equity Attributable to Parent Comfany’s shareholders)

It tests the productivity of the owners’ investments.

Return on Assets (Net Income/ Total Assets)
This ratio indicates how profitable a company is relative to its total assets.

Earnings per Share (EPS)
It indicates the earnings for each of the common shares held.

ACTIVITY RATIO
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Asset Turnover 4.68% 5.03%




[y

OTHERS

As of the 2nd quarter ended June 30, 2017, there are no:

Asset Turnover (Sales/ Total Assets)

It measures the level of capital investment relative to sales yolume.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Interest Coverage 21.19

17.95

Interest Coverage Ratio (Earnings before Interest and Income Tavc/ Iptersst Excpense)
It measures how easily a company can pay interest on an oytstanding debt.

Known trend, demands, commitments, events or uncertaintid
impact on the liquidity of the Company.

s that would have a material

Matetial commitments for capital expenditutes, the general phirpose of such commitments

and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had ot that arf reasonably expected to have

a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net pales/revenues/income from

continuing operations.
Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise fro
operations. :
Causes for any material changes from petiod to period in of
Company’s financial operations.
Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financiall
operations.
Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial oblig
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation;
All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obli
obligations), and other relationships of the company with un
petsons created during the reporting petiod.

m the Company’s continuing
1e or more line items of the
condition or results of the
ition that is material to the

pations (including contingent
ronsolidated entities of other




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 2nd QUARTER ENDED June 30, 2017

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Global-Estate Resotts, Inc. (the Company or GERI) was incorporated in the Philippines
on May 18, 1994, primarily to engage in the hotizontal development of residential
subdivision lots, integrated residential, golf and other leisure-related properties, and

vertical development of mixed-use towers.

The Cothipany also engages in land

acquisitions and maintains an inventory of raw land for futiire development.

The registered office of the Company, which is also its

principal place of business, is

located at the 16" Floor Alliance Global Towet, 36™ St. cof. 11* Ave. Uptown Bonifacio,

Taguig City .

Megawotld Corporation (Megawotld or the parent comp

y) made various acquisitions

in 2014, including the purchase of all shares held by the Company’s previous parent
company, Alliance Global Group, Inc. (AGI or the ultimate parent company), as a result,
Megawortld’s effective ownership in GERI increased to 80.41%, making it the new parent
company of GERI in 2014. In 2016 and 2015, the parent] company acquired additional

shares of GERI from the PSE, increasing its ownership i
respectively.

Megawotld was incorporated in the Philippines primarily

erest to 82.31% and 82.24%,

o engage in the development

of large scale, mixed-use planned communities or townships that integrate residential,
commercial, leisure and entertainment components. Megaworld is presently engaged in

propetty-related activities such as product design,
management. Megaworld’s real estate portfolio includes 14
subdivision lots and townhouses, as well as office proj
tegistered office of Megaworld, which is also its principal j
the 30™ Floor Alliance Global Tower, 36™ St. cor. 11" A

City ty.

AGT is a holding company with diversified investments in 1
manufacturing, quick service restaurants and tourism-g
registered office, which is also its primary place of busine
1880 Eastwood Avenue, Eastwood City CyberPark, 18
Quezon City.

construction and propetty
sidential condominium umnits,
ects and retail spaces. The
lace of business, is located at
e. Uptown Bonifacio, Taguig

eal estate, food and beverage,
riented businesses. AGI’s
s, is located at the 7* Floor,
8 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue,

The shares of stock of the Company, Megawotld and AGT are listed at the Philippine

Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Company holds interests in the following subsidiatie
together with the Company, hereinafter referred to as the G

Explanatory
Subsidiaries/ Associates Notes ZQZOI 7
Subsidiaries:
Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. (FEPI) 100%
Aklan Holdings Inc. (AHI) (@) 100%
Blu Sky Airways, Inc. (BSAI) () 100%

and associates (collectively,

roup):

Percentage of Ownership
2016 2015

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%




£

Explanatory | Percentage of Owpership
Subsidiaries/Associates Notes 202017 2016 2015
Subsidiaries:
Fil-Estate Subic Development Corp. (FESDC) @ 100%5 100% 100%
Fil-Power Construction Equipment )

Leasing Corp. (FPCELC) (@) 1005 100% 100%
Golden Sun Airways, Inc. (GSAD) (@) 100%% 100% 100%
La Compafia De Sta. Barbara, Inc. (LCSBI) (a) 10095 100% 100%
MCX Corporation (MCX) (@) 100%o 100% 100%
Pioneer L-5 Realty Corp. (PLRC) (a) 100% 100% 100%
Prime Airways, Inc. (PAD) (a) 100%: 100% 100%
Sto. Domingo Place Development Corp. (SDPDC) (a) 100% 100% 100%
Fil-Power Concrete Blocks Corp. ["PCBC) (@) 100% 100% 100%
Fil-Estate Industrial Park, Inc. (FEIPT) (2) 799 79% 79%
Sherwood Hills Development Inc. (SHDT) (a) 55% 55% 55%

Fil-Estate Golf and Development, Inc. (FEGDI) 100% 100% 100%
Golforce, Inc. (Golforce) ®) 100% 100% 100%
Southwoods Ecocentrum Corp. (SWEC) ®) 609 60% 56%

Philippine Aquatic Leisure Corp. (PALC) © 60° 60% 56%

Fil-Estate Urban Development Corp. (FEUDC) 100% 100% 100%

Novo Sierra Holdings Corp. (NSHC) 100% 100% 100%

Megaworld Global-Estate, Inc. (MGEI) ) 60% 60% 60%

Twin Lakes Corp. (TLC) 51% 51% 51%

Oceanfront Properties, Inc. (OPT) 50% 50% 50%

Global Homes and Communities, Inc. (GHCL 100% 100% 100%

Southwoods Mall, Inc. (SMI) 50.4% 50% 50%

Associates:

Boracay Newcoast Hotel Group, Inc. (BNHGI) (e) 30% 30% 45%

Fil-Estate Network, Inc. (FENT) 20%| 20% 20%

Fil-Estate Sales, Inc. (FESI) 20%| 20% 20%

Fil-Estate Realty and Sales Associates Inc. (FERSAI) 20% 20% 20%

Fil-Estate Realty Corp. (FERC) 20% 20% 20%

Nasugbu Properties, Inc. (NPI) 14% 14% 14%

Non-controlling interests (NCI) in 2016 and 2015 represent the interests not held by the Group in FEIPI, SHDI, SWEC, PALC,
MGEI, TLC, OPI and SMI. In 2016 and 2015, additonal NCI were recognized arising from Megaworld’s subscription to SMI’s
unissued shares.

All subsidiaries and associates were incorporated in the Philippines, operate within [the country and are engaged in businesses
related to the main business of the Company.
Explanatory notes:
(@)  Subsidiaries of FEPI; percentage ownership represents effective ownership of [GERL
() Subsidiaries of FEGDI; percentage ownership represents effective ownershig of GERI. In 2015, GERI acquired from
NCI a 4% direct ownership interest in SWEC (see Note 24.4), increasing GERD's effective ownership interest from 56%
in 2014 to 60% in 2015.
(¢) Subsidiary of SWEC.
(d)  Subsidiary acquired in prior years primarily to market the Group’s projects.
(€) In 2014, FEPI disposed 40% of its ownership interest over its wholly owned sybsidiary, BNHGI. As at December 31, 2014,
due to the disposal of shares, FEPI lost its control over BNHGT; hence, BNHGI was reclassified as an associate.

10
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO

The significant accounting policies that have been use
consolidated financial statements are summarized below af
policies have been consistently applied to all the years pres

LICIES

d in the preparation of these
1d in the succeeding pages. The
ented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial statements

(@) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting S

®)

(©)

andards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group h4ve been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from thle pronouncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, and apprqgved by the Philippine Board of

Accountancy.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepated using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully desctibed in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented ih accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group presents

all items of income and expenses in a single
comprehensive income.

The Group presents a thitd consolidated statement

consolidated statement of

of financial position at the

beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy

retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of

teclassification of items that

has a material effect on the information in the consolidated statement of financial

position at the beginning of the preceding period.

The related notes to thitd

consolidated statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are present
Group’s presentation and functional cutrency, and 4
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
using its functional currency, the currency of the primg
which the Group opetates.

ed in Philippine pesos, the
il values represent absolute

of the Group are measured

ity economic environment in

11



2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

@

Effective in 2016 that are Relevant to the Gronp

The Group adopted for the first time the follow]
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effectiy]

on or after January 1, 2016:
PAS 1 (Amendments)

PAS 16 and 38
(Amendments)

PAS 16 and 41
(Amendments)
PAS 27 (Amendments)

PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and
PAS 28 (Amendments)

PFRS 11 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements

Discussed below and in the succeeding pages are th¢

ing amendments and annual
e for annual periods beginning

Presentation of Financial Statemnents —
Disclosure Initiative

Property, Plant 4nd Equipment, and
Intangible Apsets — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Amottization

Property, Plant and Equipment, and
Agrticulture | Bearer Plants

Separate Financial

Statements — Equity

Method in S¢parate Financial

Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements,
~ Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, and|Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures — Investment
Entities — Applying the Consolidation

Exception

Joint Arrangemepts — Accounting for
Acquisitions ¢f Interests in Joint

Operations

Annual Improvefnents to
PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle)

these amendments and improvements.

@

relevant information about

PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure Initiative.

The amendments encourage entities to apply

professional judgment in

presenting and disclosing information in the finanjcial statements. Accordingly,

it clarifies that materiality applies to the whole ﬁnT
shall not reduce the understandab_ility of the fina
material information with immaterial information

cial statements and an entity

cial statements by obscuting

or by aggregating material

items that have different natures or functions. |Moreover, the amendments
clarify that an entity’s share in other comprehensjve income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using equity method should be presented based on
whether or not such other comprehensive income item will subsequently be

reclassified to profit or loss. It futther clarifies thqt

in determining the order of

presenting the notes and disclosures, an |entity shall consider the

understandability and comparability of the financial

statetments.

12



(i)

(itf)

()

PAS 16 (Amendments), Property, Plant any Egquipment, and PAS 38
(Amendments), Intangible Assets — Clarification of Hcoeptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortization. The amendments in PAS 16 clarify that a depreciation
method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes
the use of an asset is not appropriate for propgrty, plant and equipment. In
addition, amendments to PAS 38 introduce 2 r¢buttable presumption that an
amortization method that is based on the revenye generated by an activity that
includes the use of an intangible asset is not appropriate, which can only be
overcome in limited circumstances where the infangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue, or when it can be demorstrated that revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of af intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendments also provide guidance that the expected future
reductions in the selling price of an item that as produced using the asset
could indicate an expectation of technological of commercial obsolescence of
an asset, which may reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset.

PAS 16 (Amendments), Property, Plant and Eguipment, and PAS 41
(Amendments), Agriculinre — Bearer Plants. The|amendments define a bearer
plant as a living plant that is used in the produgtion ot supply of agricultural
produce, is expected to bear produce for mor¢ than one petiod and has a
remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for incidental
scrap sales. On this basis, bearer plant is now included within the scope of PAS
16 rather than PAS 41, allowing such assets to be accounted for as property,
plant and equipment and to be measured after|initial recognition at cost or
revaluation basis in accordance with PAS 16. The amendments further clarify
that produce growing on bearer plants remains within the scope of PAS 41.

PAS 27 (Amendments), Separate Financial Statemepsts — Equity Method in S, eparate
Financial Statements. These amendments introduce a third option which permits
an entity to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
assoclates under the equity method in its sephrate financial statements in
addition to the current options of accounting thpse investments at cost or in
accordance with PAS 39, Finangal Instruments: ecognition and Measurement, or
PERS 9, Financial Instruments.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Finapcial ~Statements, PFRS 12
(Amendments), Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitie}, and PAS 28 (Amendments),
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Invdstment Entities — Applying the
Consolidation Exception. 'These amendments addfess the concerns that have
arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception for investment

entities.  They clarify which subsidiaries of]
consolidated in accordance with paragraph 32 of
the exemption to present consolidated financial st4
4 of PFRS 10, is available to a parent entity that is
entity. These amendments also permit a non-inv4

an investment entity are
PFRS 10 and clarify whether
tements, set out in paragraph
a subsidiary of an investment
rstment entity investor, when

applying the equity method of accounting for an'4ssociate or joint venture that
is an investment entity, to tetain the fair value neasurement applied by that
investment entity associate or joint venture to its ifjterests in subsidiaries.

13




(vi) PFRS 11 (Amendments), Joint Agreements — Accoutpting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations (effective from January 1, 2016). These amendments require the
acquiter of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a
business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combirations, to apply all accounting
principles and disclosure requitements on busineys combinations under PFRS 3

and other PFRSs, except for those principles th4t conflict with the guidance in
PFRS 11.

(vii) Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 Cyclg). Among the improvetments,
the following amendments are relevant to the| Group but had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as these amendments
metely clarify the existing requirements:

e PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Bensfits — |Discount Rate: Regional Market
Issue.  The amendments clarify that the cufrency and term of the high
quality corporate bonds which were used to determine the discount rate for
post-employment benefit obligations shall pe made consistent with the
currency and estimated tetm of the post-employment benefit obligations.

* PFRS 7 (Amendments), Financial Instruments:| Disclosures — Servicing Contracts.
The amendments provide additional guidande to help entities identify the
circumstances under which a contract to |“service” financial assets is
considered to be a continuing involvement in] those assets for the purposes
of applying the disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such circumstances
commonly arise when, for example, the sqrvicing is dependent on the
amount ot timing of cash flows collected from the transferred asset or
when a fixed fee is not paid in full due to non{performance of that asset.

(b) Effective in 2016 that are not Relevant to the Group

The following new PFRS, amendments and annudl improvements to existing
standards are mandatorily effective for annual petiods peginning on ot after January
1, 2016 but are not relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

PERS 14 :  Regulatory Defettal Accounts
Disclosure Injitiative
Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle)
PFRS 5 (Amendments) :  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations —
Changes in Methods of Disposal
PFRS 7 (Amendments) :  Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Applicability pf the Amendments to
PFRS 7 to Cqndensed Interim Financial
Statements
PAS 34 (Amendments) :  Interim Financial[Reporting — Disclosure
of Information “Elsewhere in the
Interim Finanjcial Report”
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(¢) Effective Subsequent to 2016 but noZAdqbted Earé/

There are new PFRS and amendments to existing
periods subsequent to 2016, which are adopted by the ]
the relevant pronouncements shown in the next p
transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, 1
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated fit

@

(i)

(iif)

PAS 7 (Amendments), Statement of Cash Flows

standards effective for annual
FRSC. Management will adopt
age in accordance with their
1one of these are expected to
lancial statements:

— Disclosure Initiative (effective

from January 1, 2017). The amendments are designed to improve the quality of

information provided to users of financial sta

ements about changes in an

entity’s debt and related cash flows (and non-cash changes). They require an

entity to provide disclosures that enable users tq
arising from financing activiies. An entity

evaluate changes in liabilities
applies its judgment when

determining the exact form and content of the disclosures needed to satisfy this

requirement. Moteover, they suggest a number g

f specific disclosures that may

be necessaty in order to satisfy the above requirement, including: (a) changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities caused

by changes in financing cash

flows, foreign exchange rates or fair values, or pbtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; and, (b) a recopciliation of the opening and

closing balances of liabilities arising from financij

g activities in the statement of

financial position including those changes identifigd immediately above.

PERS 2 (Amendments), Share-based Payment — (lassification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions (effective fromh January 1, 2018).  The

amendments contain three changes covering
accounting for the effects of vesting conditions o
settled share-based payment; the classificatio
transactions with a net settlement feature for wit|
the accounting for a modification to the terms ar
payment that changes the classification of the tr4
equity-settled.

PFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (effective frof
standatd on financial instruments will replace PA.
and 2013 versions). This standard contains, amon,

e three principal classification categories for f

business model on how an entity is managing

the following matters: the

n the measurement of a cash-

n of share-based payment
hholding tax obligations; and,
d conditions of a share-based
nsaction from cash-settled to

m January 1, 2018). This new
5 39 and PFRS 9 (2009, 2010
> others, the following:

inancial assets based on the
ts financial instruments;

® an expected loss model in determining impdirment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which

generally depends on whether there has been

p significant increase in credit

tisk since initial tecognition of a financial asset} and,

® a new model on hedge accounting that provi

des significant improvements

principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk

management activities undertaken by entities
and non-financial risk exposures.

when hedging theit financial
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i)

In accordance with the financial asset classificatipn principle of PFRS 9 (2014),

a financial asset is classified and measured at amlo
within a business model whose objective is to ho
collect the contractual cash flows that represent
and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding
classified and subsequently measured at fair valug

rtized cost if the asset is held
Id financial assets in order to
solely payments of principal
Moreover, a financial asset is

through other comprehensive

income if it meets the SPPI ctiterion and is hdld in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contracfual cash flows and selling the

financial assets. All other financial assets are meds

ured at FVTPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is not

held for trading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in hd
assets is simplified by removing the requiremer]
they are closely related, and, in most arrangemenit
from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the

st contracts that are financial
t to consider whether or not

s, does not require separation

PAS 39 requitements which

include amortized cost accounting for most finarjcial liabilities, with bifurcation

of embedded detivatives. The amendment als
value of an entity’s own debt instruments causedl

tequires changes in the fair
by changes in its own credit

quality to be recognized in other comprehensive jncome rather than in profit or

loss.

Management is cutrently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 (2014) on the financial

statements of the Group and it will conduct 2|

comprehensive study of the

potential impact of this standard ptior to its manflatory adoption date to assess

the impact of all changes.

PERS 15, Revenne from Contract with Customers (effective from January 1, 2018) —

This standard will replace PAS 18, Resvenne, and

PAS 11, Construction Contracts,

the related Interpretations on revenue recognjtion: International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of Real Estaye, IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets
Jrom Customers and Standing Interpretations Committee 31, Revenne — Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services, effective Jamuary 1, 2018,

This new standard establishes a comprehensive
when to recognize revenue and how much revq
principle in the said framework is for an entity t
the transfer of promised goods or services to thd
reflects the consideration to which the entity expd
for those goods or services. Relative to the 4
Philippines, the FRSC also approved the issuance
Committee Question & Answer No. 2016-04, 4}
Jrom “Contracts with Customers,” on Sale of Residentic
Contracts, which provides that sales of residd
completion stage can be recognized over time untf

framework for determining
nue to recognize. The cote

b recognize revenue to depict

customer in an amount that
cts to be entitled in exchange
doption of PFRS 15 in the
of Philippine Interpretations
pplication of PFRS 15, Revenne
/' Properties under Pre-completion
ntial properties under pre-
| completion of construction.
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(vi)

Management is currently assessing the impact of
consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 16, Leases (effective from January 1, 2(
eventually replace PAS 17, I eases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases “on-}
“right of use” asset and a lease liability. The leasd
the present value of future lease payments. Fo
include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingg
during optional petiods to the extent that exten
subsequent periods, the “right-of-use” asset is

this standard on the Group’s

19). The new standard will

palance sheet” by recognizing a
liability is initially measured as
- this purpose, lease payments
elements, amounts due under
ent payments and amounts due
sion is reasonably certain. In
accounted for similatly to a

purchased asset and depreciated or amortized. The lease liability is accounted for

similar to a financial liability using the effective i
new standard provides important reliefs or exemp
leases of low value assets. If these exemptions arg
to operating lease accounting under PAS 17 wherd
as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease t{
(if more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17’
between finance and operating leases is retained. |
lease, and the supporting indicatots of a finance lea

aterest method. However, the
tions for short-term leases and
used, the accounting is sitnilar
lease payments are recognized
etm or another systematic basis
benefit).

5. In particular, the distinction
I'he definitions of each type of
5€, are substantially the same as

PAS 17’s. 'The basic accounting mechanics ar¢ also similar, but with some
different or more explicit guidance in few areas. These include variable payments,

sub-leases, lease modifications, the treatment of
disclosures. Management is currently assessing th
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financ
(Amendments), Investments in Associates and Joint U
Assets between an Investor and its Assosiates or Joint

indefinitely). The amendments to PFRS 10 rq
investor’s financial statements of gains or lo
contribution of assets that constitute a business 3
Combinations, between an investor and its

initial direct costs and lessor
e impact of this new standard

al  Statements, and PAS 28
Centures — Sale or Contribution of
(enture (effective date deferred
quire full recognition in the
sses arising on the sale or
1s defined in PFRS 3, Business
pssociate or joint venture.

Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or ldsses (i.e., to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interests in an associate or foint venture) only applies to

those sale of contribution of assets that do
Corresponding amendments have been made
changes.

not constitute a business.
to PAS 28 to reflect these

In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when

determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business, an

entity shall consider whether the sale or contribu

rion. of those assets is patt of

multiple arrangements that should be accounted fdr as a single transaction.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Company,
and its subsidiaties as enumerated in the Note 1, after| the elimination of material
intercompany transactions. All intercompany assets and labilities, equity, income,
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expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities under the Group, are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized profits arld losses from intercompany
transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses

that indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

ed as of a date different from
rere adjusted to recognize the
between that date of - their
ial statements. Adjustments
licies that may exist.

Financial statements of entities in the Group that are prepay
that of the date of these consolidated financial statements W
effects of significant transactions or events that occur
reporting petiod and the date of these consolidated finang
are also made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting po

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaties
opetations and transactions with NCI as follows:

associates, interests in joint

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
control. The Group controls an entity when it is expo
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
through its power over the entity. Subs1d1arles are co
Company obtains control.

over which the Group has
sed, or has rights to, variable
ability to affect those returns
nsolidated from the date the

ols an entity if facts and
mote of the three elements of
nsolidated from the date that

The Company reassesses whether or not it contf
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
controls indicated above. Accordingly, entities are decd
control ceases.

ed subsidiaries. This requires
ed, the liabilities assumed and
ired for the acquisition of a
he liabilities incurred and the
onsideration transfetred also
esulting from a contingent
ire expensed as incurred and

The acquisition method is applied to account for acqui
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquir
any NCI in the acquiree. The consideration transfes
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, t
equity intetests issued by the Group, if any. The g
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs

subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consi
in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contin
business combination ate measuted initially at their fair

Jeration is recognized directly

pent liabilities assumed in a
values at the acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the acquiree

either at fair value or at the NCI’s proportionate sharg
net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amout
and the acquisition date fair value of any existing equit]
the acquisition-date fait value of identifiable net assq
goodwill. If the consideration transferred is less than ¢
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purd
goodwill) is recognized directly as gain in profit or loss

of the acquiree’s identifiable

it of any NCI in the acquiree
7 interest in the acquiree over
ts acquired is recognized as

he fair value of the net assets

hase, the difference (negative
see also Note 2.11).
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(b) Investments in Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group

is able to exert significant

influence but not control and which are neither subsidliaries nor interests in a joint

venture. Investments in associates are initially recogni
accounted for using the equity method.

Acquired investments in associates are also subject td

zed at cost and subsequently

the purchase method. The

purchase method involves the recognition of the acqpiree's identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded in

the financial statements prior to acquisition.
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Company’s
assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition.
adjustment attributable to the Company’s share in th
amount recognized as investment in an-associate.

All subsequent changes to the ownership interest in th
recognized in the Company’s carrying amount of the in
from the profit or loss generated by the associates are ¢

Goodwill represents the excess of

share of the identifiable net
Any goodwill or fair value
> associate is included in the

e equity of the associates are
vestments. Changes resulting
redited or charged against the

Equity Share in Net Losses of Associates account in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Impairment loss is provided when there is an objective
in an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.18).

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income d
have been directly recognized in the associate’s equity)|
the associate’s accounting for available-for-sale (AFS) fi
in other comprehensive income or equity of the Gro
when the Group’s share of losses in an associate equaly
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, th
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or maj
associate.  If the associate subsequently reports p
recognizing its share of those profits only after its shay
accumulated share of losses that has previously not bee

Distributions received from the associates, if any, are ad
the carrying value of the investment.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group an|

to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associateg.

eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have beef
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Gro

Interests in Joint Operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the paf
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligation]
the arrangement.
control in an arrangement, which exist only when

evidence that the investment

f the associates or items that

for example, resulting from
nancial assets, are recognized
up, as applicable. However,
or exceeds its interest in the
ie Group does not recognize
de payments in behalf of the
rofits, the Group resumes
e of the profits exceeded the
| recognized.

counted for as a reduction of

d its associates are eliminated
Unrealized losses are also
| an impairment of the asset
1 changed wherte necessary to

up.

ties that have joint control of
s for the liabilities, relating to

A joint control arises from a contractually agreed sharing of

decisions about the relevant
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2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a
of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying fin
considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative
equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of ]
Presentation.

instruments.

@

activities require unanimous consent of the patties shaging control. For intetests in

joint operations, the Group recognized in its consoli

dated financial statements its

assets including its share of any assets held jointly; its Jabilities including its share of

any liabilities incutred jointly; its tevenue from sale of

ts share of the output arising

from the joint operation; its expenses including its share of any expenses incurred

jointly; and its share in the income from the sale of g

oods or services by the joint

operation. The amounts of these related accounts ate presented as patt of the regular

asset and liability accounts and income and expense ag
measured and recognized in accordance with the
standards.

No adjustment and consolidation procedures ate reqy

income and expenses of the joint operation that are

financial statements of the joint operators.

Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not r
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transg
Group in their capacity as owners. The difference b
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
assets of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Dispg
NCI result in gains and losses for the Group that are alg

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidia
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when ¢
in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The £
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting f
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In additi
recognized in other comprehensive income in respect o
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related 4
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
reclassified to profit or loss.

All other non-derivative financial instruf

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets other than those designated and effectiy
classified into the following categories: financial as
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and AFS fina

counts of the Group and are
relevant financial repotting

ired for the assets, liabilities,
recognized in the separate

esult in loss of control are

ction with the owners of the
etween the fair value of any
the carrying value of the net
sals of equity investments to
o recognized in equity.

ry, any retained interest in the
pntrol is lost, with the change
nir value is the initial carrying
or the retained interest as an
on, any amounts previously
[ that entity are accounted for
ssets or liabilities. This may
comprehensive income are

party to the contractual terms
ancial assets, an instrument is
and meets the definition of
PAS 32, Financial Instraments:
nents are treated as debt

re as hedging instruments are
sets at FVTPL, loans and
hcial assets. Financial assets

are assigned to the different categories by managefnent on initial recognition,

depending on the purpose for which the investments w

re acquired.
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Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVIPL are initially recognized at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets catried at FVITPL are
initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized in
profit or loss. A more detailed description of the felevant financial assets is as
follows:

(7)) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fingncial assets with fixed ot
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or servicgs directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables. They are included in cutrent assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the|end of the reporting period
which are classified as non-curtent assets.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans jand receivables are presented
in the consolidated statements of financial pfosition as Cash and Cash
Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables (efcept for Advances to raw
landowners), Advances to Related Parties and Reflundable deposits (included as
part of Prepayments and Other Current Assets and Other Non-current Assets).
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-
term, highly liquid investments with original matutities of three months or less,
readily convertible to known amounts of casi and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if apy.

() AFS Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to
this category or do not qualify for inclusion in |any of the other categories of
financial assets. They are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position unless managemient intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months from the reporting period. The Group’s AFS
financial assets include proprietary golf club membership shares and are presented
as part of Others under the Other Non-current Assets account in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

All financial assets within this category are subsgquently measured at fair value.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recpgnized in other comprehensive
income, net of any income tax effects, and are repprted as part of the Revaluation
Reserves account in equity, except for interest an{ dividend income, impairment
losses and foreign exchange differences in monetgry assets, which are recognized
in profit or loss. '

When the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, that is,
when there is a significant or prolonged decline inf the fair value of the security
below its cost, the cumulative fair value gains or losses recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is

21




presented as reclassification adjustment within ¢ther comprehensive income
even though the financial asset has not been derecpgnized.

() Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting petipd whether thete is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial agsets is impaired. The Group
recognizes impairment loss based on the category of financial assets as follows:

(#) Carried at Amortized Cost — Loans and Receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impaitment [loss on loans and receivables
carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the assefs’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (exclfiding future credit losses that
have not been incurred), discounted at the finapcial asset’s original effective
interest rate or current effective interest rate detqrmined under the contract if
the loan has a variable interest rate.

The cartying amount of the asset shall be reduced|either directly ot through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impafirment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event og¢cutring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognized impairment loss is teversefl by adjusting the allowance
account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying|amount of the financial asset
that exceeds what the amortized cost would have peen had the impairment not
been recognized at the date of the impairment is feversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(iz) Carried at Fair Valne — AFS Financial Assets

When a decline in the fair value of an AFS financia] asset has been recognized in
other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss — measured as [the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment apd amottization) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financigl asset previously recognized
in profit or loss — is reclassified from Revaluation Resetves to profit ot loss as a
reclassification adjustment even though the fifancial asset has not been

derecognized.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss ofi equity instruments ate not
reversed through profit or loss. Reversal of impaitment losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income, except for financial pssets that are debt securities
which are recognized in profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment lpss was recognized.
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(c) Items of Income and Expense Related to Financial Assets

relating to financial assets that
Finance and Other Income or
consolidated statement of

All income and expenses, including impairment losses,
are recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of
Finance Costs and Other Charges account in thg
comprehensive income.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and oth
holding financial assets are recognized in profit ot los
how the related carrying amount of financial assets is m|

er cash flows resulting from
s when earned, regardless of
casured.

(d) Derecognition of Financial Assets
The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractyal rights to receive cash flows
from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial
tisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred tp another party. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks apd rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group tecognizes its retained interest

in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it mpy have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerghip of a transferred financial

asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.5 Real Estate Transactions

Acquisition costs of raw land intended for futute developy
expenses incurred to effect the transfer of title of the prope
the Land for Future Development account. These cos
Development Costs account when the development of]
property development costs are then accumulated in this
certain loans incurred during the development of the

capitalized by the Group as part of Property Development
Resort Shares for Sale account (see Note 2.21). Once a rev
per project basis, up to the stage the unit is sold, the related
reclassified to Real Estate, Golf and Resort Shares for Sale 3

The cost of real estate property sold before completion
determined based on the actual costs incurred to date plus

asset and also recognizes a

ment, including other costs and
rty to the Group, are charged to
ts are reclassified to Property
the property starts. Related
account. Borrowing costs on
real estate properties are also
Costs or Real Estate, Golf and
enue transaction occurred, on a
property development costs are
ccount.

of the development, if any, is
estimated costs to complete the

development of the property. The estimated expenditures flor the development of sold real

estate property, as determined by the project engineers, a
Estate Sales presented in the consolidated statement of
corresponding credit to Reserve for Property Development

Costs of properties and projects classified under Land for
Development Costs and Real Estate, Golf and Resort Sh3
specific identification of their individual costs. These prop
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable val

in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to cq

necessary to make the sale.

re charged to the Cost of Real
comprehensive income with a
account, a liability account.

Future Development, Property
res for Sale are assigned using
erties and projects are valued at
ue is the estimated selling price
mplete and the estimated costs
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The Group recognizes the effect of revisions in the total groject cost estimates in the year
in which these changes become known. Any impairment Joss from a real estate project is
charged to operations during the period in which the loss ig determined.

Revenue and cost relative to forfeited or back-out sales arg reversed in the cutrent year as
they occur.

2.6 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resoyrces controlled by the Group as
a result of past events. They ate recognized in the consolidated financial statements when
it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow o the entity and the asset has a
cost or value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, whete future ecpnomic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the teporting petiod or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as ngn-cutrent assets.

2.7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at acqujsition or construction cost less
subsequent depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any. As no finite useful
life for land can be determined, the related carrying amoupt are not depreciated. Land is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for tepaits and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 50 years
Building and office improvements 5-10 years
Transportation and other equipment 5 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of |depreciation of propetty and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the ¢nd of each reporting petiod.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they ate no
longer in use and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respect
of those assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to|its tecoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recovergble amount (see Note 2.18).

An item of property and equipment, including the reldted accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continuedl use of the asset. Any gain ot
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
24




disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is [included in profit ot loss in the

year the item is derecognized.

2.8 Investment Property

gs held for lease. Buildings are
irment losses. Land is stated at

Investment property consists of parcels of land and buildi
catried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any imp
cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and a
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended u
major improvements and renewals are capitalized;
maintenance are charged to expense as incutred.

ny directly attributable costs of
se. Expenditures for additions,
expenditures for repairs and

Depteciation is computed on a straight-line basis over thle estimated useful life of the

assets as follows:

Land development and improvements
Building and improvements

20 years
0-50 years

[y

The tesidual values, estimated useful lives and method 9
property are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the enl

f depreciation of investment
d of each reporting period.

its recoverable amount if the
ht (see Note 2.18).

An asset’s carrying amount is wtitten down immediately to
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amou

Transfers to, or from, investment propetty shall be made W
change in use ot purpose for such propetty.

rhen and only when there is a

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal ot W
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from
on the retirement or disposal of an investment propetty is
statement of comprehensive income in the year of retiremer]

then permanently withdrawn
its disposal. Any gain or loss
ecognized in the consolidated
it or disposal.

2.9 Development Rights

. The cost of the asset is the
of the other considerations
production. Capitalized costs

useful life as the life of this
pment rights are subject to

Development rights are accounted for under the cost mode
amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair valud
given up to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition ot
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
intangible asset is considered finite. In addition, develd
impairment testing as described in Note 2.18.

Development rights, presented as part of the Other No

derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic }

from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss ari

asset is included in profit or loss in the year the item is dereq

n-current Assets account, is
benefits are expected to arise
sing on derecognition of the
ognized.
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2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include Interest-beatring Loans
(except tax-related liabilities), Advances from Related P
Partners, Redeemable Preferred Shares and Other No
(except Advance rental), are recognized when the Gro
contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related
financial liability are recognized as an expense in profit or 1
Costs and Other Charges in the consolidated statement of g

Interest-bearing loans are raised for support of long-term fi
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or rede
are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the
are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
settled in the petiod in which they arise.

Trade and Other Payables, Advances from Related Pa
Partners and Other Non-current Liabilities ate initially recd
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective if
beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Preferred shares, which catry a mandatoty coupon or are r
at the option of the shareholder, are classified as financiall
separate line item in the consolidated statement of finar
Preferted Shares. '

Dividend distributions to shareholders, if any, are recogniz
the dividends are approved by the BOD. The dividends
shares are recognized in the consolidated statement of com

expense on an amortized cost basis using the effective interg

Financial liabilities are classified as cutrent liabilities if paym
one year or less after the end of the reporting petiod (ot in
the business, if longer), or the Group does not have an

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the f

these are presented as non-cutrent liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolid
position only when the obligations are extinguished eithet th
The difference between the cartying amg
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recog

or expiration.

2.11 Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquis

[see Note 2.3(a)].

, Trade and Other Payables

arties, Due to Joint Venture
n-current Liabilities account

up becomes a party to the
charges, if any, incutrred on
bss under the caption Finance
omprehensive income.

inding of operations. Finance
mption and direct issue costs,
effective interest method and
he extent that these are not

rties, Due to Joint Venture
lonized at their fair values and
nterest method for maturities

rdeemable on specific date or
liabilities and presented as a
icial position as Redeemable

ed as financial liabilities when
on the redeemable preferred
prehensive income as interest
est method.

ent is due to be settled within
the normal operating cycle of
unconditional right to defer
reporting period. Otherwise,

ated statement of financial
rough discharge, cancellation
unt of the financial Hability
hized in profit or loss.

ition method of accounting
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Goodwill, if any, represents the excess of the cost of an ac
the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acq
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill, if
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
cartied at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impal
not reversed. Negative goodwill, which is the excess of th
fair value of net identifiable assets acquired over acquisiti
profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocat
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
combination in which the goodwill arose. The cash-gener
generating units are identified according to operating segme

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a su
amount of goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquif
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its ac
recognize the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit ot
income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Grd
at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the f
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is r
PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
or as a change to other comprehensive income. Con
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
within equity.

2.12 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consiste
provided to the Group’s BOD - its chief operating d
responsible for allocating resources and assessing petformar

In identifying its operating segments, management generall
and service lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent f
provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
requires different resources as well as marketing approach
are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment 1
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements

h,

quisition over the fair value of
hired subsidiary at the date of

any, is measured at cost less

annually for impairment and
irment losses on goodwill are
le Group’s interest in the net

n cost, is charged directly to

d to cash-generating units or
benefit from the business

ating units or groups of cash-
nt.

bsidiary include the catrying

er is required to remeasure its
quisition-date fair value and
loss or other comprehensive

up is recognized at fair value
pir value of the contingent
ccognized in accordance with
Assets, either in profit or loss
ingent consideration that is

settlement is accounted for

ht with the internal reporting

ecision-maker. The BOD is
Ice of the operating segments.

y follows the Group’s products

he main products and setvices

as each of these service lines
es. All inter-segment transfers

porting under PFRS 8 are the
, except that the following are

not included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating segments:

* post-employment benefit expenses;
* expenses relating to share-based payments;
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* research costs relating to new business activities; an
* revenue, costs and fair value gains from investment

In addition, corporate assets which are not directly atttibuf
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

There have been no changes from ptior petiods in the
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.13 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably eve
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises
constructive commitment that has resulted from past event

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the f
are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
settlement is determined by considering the class of oblig
value of money is material, long-term provisions are dis
using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and thg
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting pej
current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic
" obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the am)
be measured reliably, no hability is recognized in the co

Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the G

d

>

ptoperty.

able to the business activities of

measurement methods used to

probably lead to an outflow of
h if the timing or amount of the
from the presence of a legal or

B.

required to settle the present
the end of the reporting period,
resent obligation. Where there
an outflow will be required in
jations as a whole. When time
tounted to their present values
> risks specific to the obligation.
recognized as intetest expense.
iod and adjusted to reflect the

resource as a result of present
ount to be provided for cannot
nsolidated financial statements.
roup that do not yet meet the

recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized

in the consolidated financial statements. On the other ha
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of

2.14 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the ¢
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported i

financial position when the Group cutrently has legally {

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off
the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a

enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event]

insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforc
counterparties to the financial instruments.

nd, any reimbursement that the
with respect to the obligation is
the related provision.

esulting net amount, considered
n the consolidated statement of
nforceable right to set off the
a net basis, or realize the asset
must be available at the end of
future event. - It must also be
of default, and in the event of

cable for both entity and all
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2.15 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of con
by the Group for real properties sold and services rendered
added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue

probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Gr
be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the follg|
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(@) Real estate sales — For financial reporting purposes

®)

covering sales of real estate are recognized under
method. Under this method, realization of gross prq
to the stage of development of the properties, ie.,

sideration received or receivable

, excluding any applicable value-

can be reliably measured; it is
bup; and the costs incurred ot to
wing specific recognition criteria

tevenues from transactions

the percentage-of-completion

fit is recognized by reference
revenue is recognized in the

period in which the work is performed. The unrealiged gross profit on a petiod’s

sales is presented as Deferred Gross Profit on Real B
statement of comprehensive income; the cutmulative
the end of the year is shown as Defetred Income
consolidated statement of financial position.

state Sales in the consolidated
unrealized gross profit as of
on Real Estate Sales in the

The sale is recognized when a certain petcentage of the total contract ptice has

already been collected. If the transaction does not j
method is applied until all conditions for recording 4
recognition of sale, payments received from buyet af
Customers’ Deposits account in the consolidated state

Revenues on sales of undeveloped land and golf and
other hand, are recognized using the full accrual mg
method, revenue is recognized when the risks and
undeveloped land and golf and resort shares have
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues and costs relative to forfeited or back out sa
year as they occur.

Any adjustments relative to previous periods’ sales
period as they occur.

For tax reporting purposes, a modified basis of comj
the period based on collections from sales is used by t]

Service income — Revenue is recognized when the per
tasks has been rendered.

et qualify as sale, the deposit
he sale are met. Pending the
e initially recorded as patt of
ment of financial position.

resott shares for sale, on the
thod. Under the full accrual

rewards of ownership in the
passed to the buyer and the

les are reversed in the current
are recorded in the current
puting the taxable income for

he Group.

formance of mutually agreed

Rental income and hotel operations — Revenue is recogniZed when the performance of

contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rendered.

Rental income is

recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease termn (see Note 2.16). Advance

rentals received are recorded as deferred rental inc
period received. For tax purposes, rental income
contractual terms of the lease.

pme and are taxable on the
is recognized based on the
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(d)  Interest income — Revenue is recognized as the interest 4
effective yield on the asset.

(¢)  Dividends — Revenue is recorded when the Group’s
established.

Cost of real estate sales before completion of the prg
cost of the land, development costs incurred to date
(see Note 2.21) and estimated costs to complete the J
estimates made by the project engineers on the stage of
project (see Note 2.5).

Cost and expenses and other costs (other than costs of rea
profit or loss upon utilization of the setvices ot goods or

ccrues taking into account the

ght to receive the payment is

jects include the acquisition
applicable borrowing costs
roject, determined based on
completion of the real estate

estate sold) are recognized in
at the date they are incurred.

All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an acfrual basis, except capitalized
borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the related qualifying asset (see

Note 2.21).

2.16 Operating Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(a) Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfet to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leasgs. Operating lease payments

(net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recg
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Asg

and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurt

(6) Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantial
ownership of the asset are classified as operating
operating leases is recognized in profit ot loss on a st
term (see Note 2.15).

The Group determines whether an atrangement is, or
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
conveys a right to use the asset.

2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in . Phi
transactions during the year are translated into the functig
which approximate those prevailing on tranisaction dates:

gnized as expense in profit or
ociated costs, such as repaits
ed.

y all the risks and benefits of
leases. Lease income from
aight-line basis over the lease

tontains, a lease based on the
" whether the fulfillment of the

or assets and the arrangement

lippine pesos. Foreign currency
nal currency at exchange rates

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settl¢gment of such transactions and
from the translation at yeat-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of income or loss from opetrations.
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2.18 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s Investments in Associates, Investment Property, Propetty and Equipment,

Development rights and other non-financial assets are
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
be recoverable. For purposes of assessing impairment, 2|
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flow
result, assets are tested for impairment either individually
level.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit ot loss for the 4
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recovery
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
management estimates the expected future cash flows fro]
determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures a1
latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude th
Discount factors are determined individually for each d
management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such
factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that]
recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying an

2.19 Employee Benefits

The Group’s employee benefits are recognized and measurg
(@)  Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan
post-employment benefit that an employee will re
dependent on one or more factors such as age, yeats o
obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-en|
the Group, even if plan assets for funding the def]

subject to impairment testing
their carrying amounts may not
ssets are grouped at the lowest
s (cash-generating units). As a
or at the cash-generating unit

mount by which the asset’s or
tble amount which is the higher
In determining value in use,
n each cash-generating unit and
the present value of those cash
e directly linked to the Group’s
e effects of asset enhancements.
ash-generating unit and reflect
ns market and asset-specific risk

an impairment loss previously
reversed if the asset’s or cash
nount.

d as follows:

that defines an amount of
ceive on retirement, usually
f service and salary. The legal
iployment plan remains with
ned benefit plan have been

acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term

benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies.
post-employment plan covers all regular full-time empl

The liability recognized in the consolidated statemer]
defined benefit plan is the present value of the defineq
the end of the reporting period less the fair value
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
The present value of the DBO is determined by disg
cash outflows for expected benefit payments using a d

The Group’s defined benefit

oyees.

t of financial position for a
| benefit obligation (DBO) at
f plan assets. The DBO is
projected unit credit method.
ounting the estimated future
iscount rate derived from the

interest rate of zero coupon government bonds as published by Philippine Dealing

and Exchange Corporation, that is denominated in

the currency in which the

benefits will be paid and that has terms to maturity approximating to the terms of

the related post-employment liability.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and lpsses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions apd the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest), if any, ate reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a dharge or credit recognized in
other comprehensive income in the petiod in which they arise. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the petiod, taking
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liabjlity ot asset during the period
as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest is teported as patt of
Finance Costs and Other Charges or Finance and Qther Income account in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past-setvice costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the petiod of a
plan amendment or curtailment.

(b)  Termination Benefits

- Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group tecognizes termination
benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdfaw the offer of such benefits
and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination bepefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offpr. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 4re discounted to their present
value.

(¢)  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the fgumber of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of each reporting period. They
are included in the Trade and Other Payables account fof the consolidated statement
of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement.

2.20 Share-based Employee Remuneration

The Company grants share options to key executive officers eligible under a stock option
plan. The services received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share
options, are valued by reference to the fair value of the ¢quity instruments granted at
grant date. This fair value excludes the impact of non-mjatket vesting conditions (for
example profitability and sales growth targets and performance conditions), if any. The
share-based remuneration is recognized as an expensq in profit or loss with a
corresponding credit to retained earnings.

The expense is recognized during the vesting petiod based pn the best available estimate
of the number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if
necessary, such that it equals the number that ultimately| vests on vesting date. No
subsequent adjustment is made to expense after vesting djte, even if share options ate
ultimately not exercised.
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't of any directly attributable
ssued are allocated to capital

apital (APIC).

Upon exercise of share option, the proceeds received n
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the shares §
stock with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in g

2.21 Borrowing Costs

For financial reporting purposes, borrowing costs ate rg
period in which they are incurred, except to the exte
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a sy
ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part
Costs or Real Estate, Golf and Resort Shares for Sale 4
capitalization of borrowing costs commences when exj
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization
such activities are complete. For income tax purposes, all
costs are treated as deductible expenses in the petiod in whi

cognized as expenses in the
nt that they are capitalized.
acquisition, construction or
bstantial period of time to get
of the Property Development
ccount (see Note 2.5). The
penditures for the asset and
hecessary to prepate the asset
ceases when substantially all
interest and other borrowing
ch they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporaty investment o
their expenditure on qualifying assets, if any, is deductg
eligible for capitalization.

[ specific borrowings pending
d from the borrowing costs

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resoutces, setv
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is g

Ices or obligations between the
harged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the abil
exercise significant influence over the other party in o
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, di
or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or u
Group;
(b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the Group that gives them significant influejce over the Group and close
members of the family of any such individual.

lity to control the other party or
haking financial and operating
rectly or indirectly through one
nder common control with the

In considering each possible related party relationship, attenjtion is directed to the substance

of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.
2.23 Income Taxes

of deferred tax and current tax

1 equity, if any.

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum
not recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly if

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal

authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period
at the reporting period. These are calculated using the tax
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable

to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a compd

loss.

that are uncollected or unpaid
rates and tax laws applicable to
profit for the year. All changes

nent of tax expense in profit or
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method
end of each reporting period between the tax base of assets
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the

bn temporary differences at the

and liabilities and their catrying
liability method, with certain

kable temporary differences and
remporary differences and the
to the extent that it is probable

exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all ta;
deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible

carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits
that taxable profit will be available against which the tempoprary differences can be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end pf each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be
available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ate measured at the tax ra
the period when the asset is tealized or the liability is sett]|
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the repq

tes that are expected to apply in
ed provided such tax rates have
rting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expeqts, at the end of each reporting
period, to recover or settle the catrying amount of its assets|and liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

he end of each reporting petriod
raxable profit will be available to

Most changes in deferred tax assets ot liabilities are recd
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relat
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tH
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

gnized as a component of tax
es to items recognized in other
e tax is also recognized in other

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authorify.

2.24 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that haj
APIC represents premium received on the issuance of capi
associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from A

tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves arise from the changes in fair value

assets and remeasurements on retirement benefit obligation, {

Retained earnings includes all current and prior period resy

the

profit or loss section of the consolidated statements d
share-based employee remuneration, reduced by the amounf

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the ne

attributable to the Company’s shareholders which are pres

consolidated statement of comprehensive income and wi

e been issued.

ral stock. Any transaction costs
PIC, net of any related income

f the Group’s AFS financial
net of applicable taxes.

Its of operations as reported in

f comprehensive income and
s of dividends declared, if any.

t assets and profit or loss not
ented separately in the Group’s
hin the equity in the Group’s
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consolidated statement of financial position and consolj

equity.
2.25 Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing
weighted average number of common shares issued and
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split
during the curtent period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted aver
outstanding to assume conversion of potentially dilutive

potentially dilutive shares consist only of share options.

2.26 Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that ptovides additional informaf
position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are nd
disclosed when material to the consolidated financial staten

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AN

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial state

dated statement of changes in

consolidated net profit by the
outstanding during the petiod,
or reverse stock split declared

age number of common shares

shares. Currently, the Group’s

ion about the Group’s financial
is reflected in the consolidated
t adjusting events, if any, ate
\ents.

ESTIMATES

iments in accordance with PFRS

requires management to make judgments and estimates thajt affect amounts reported in the

consolidated financial statements and related notes.
continually evaluated and are based on historical expetieq
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasq
Actual results may ultimately vary from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accoy

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting polic
following judgments, apart from those involving estin
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolid

(a) Revenue Recognition

Judgments and estimates are
ce and other factors, including
nable under the circumstances.

inting Policies

les, management has made the
hation, which have the most
ated financial statements:

The Group uses judgement in evaluating the probability of collection of contract

price on real estate sales as a critetion for tevenue rd
historical payment pattern of customers in establishin
threshold over which the Group determines that colleg
reasonably assured.

®)

Development

The Group determines whether an asset qualifies as an
owner-occupied property or land for future developms
the Group considers whether the property generates cas
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied g
that are attributable not only to property but also

Distinction  among  Investment Property, Ouwner-occupied Pr

cognition. The Group uses
g a percentage of collection
tion of total contract price is

operties and Land for Future

item of investment property,
ent. In making its judgment,
h flows largely independently
roperties generate cash flows
to other assets used in the
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@

operations of the Group or for administrative pufposes while land for future
development are properties intended solely for future development.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held o earn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for admjinistrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out sepatjtely under finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions sepatately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as inveptment propetty only if an
insignificant portion is held for administrative purpgses. Judgment is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property. The Group considefs each property separately in

making its judgment.

Determination of Significant Influence over Entities in whigh the Group Holds Less than

20% Ownership

The Group determines whether significant influence exjists over an investee company
over which the Group holds less than 20% of the jnvestee’s capital stock. The
and financial policies of the
investee, representation on the board of directors pf the investee and routine
its judgment.
management’s judgment, the Group has significant influence over these investee

Group considers the ability to influence the operating
patticipation in management decisions in making

companies.

Consolidation of Entities in which the Company Holds 50% Onmership or Less

Management considers that the Company has de factp control over OPI and SMI
even though it does not hold more than 50% of the ordinary shates and voting rights

of these subsidiaries due to the factors discussed below.

The Company holds 50% equity interest over OPI and SMI and has: (1) the ability to
direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaties; (2) the fights to variable returns from
its involvement with the subsidiaries; and, (3) the ability to use its power to affect its
Based on management’s
judgment, the Company has control over OPI and SM[[; hence, the said subsidiaries
were consolidated in the financial statements of the Grqup.

returns from its involvement with the subsidiarieg.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement
as either an operating or a finance lease by looking af the transfer or retention of
properties covered by the
agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will reqult in either overstatement or

significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
understatement of assets and liabilities.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provision and contingencies

are discussed in Note 2.13.




3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concetning the fufure, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
causing a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of 4
next reporting period:

(@)

®)

(¢

Business Combinations

On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of t}
consideration paid for them are included in the conso
their fair values. In measuring fair value, management
flows and discount rates. Any subsequent change in th
amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurd
other change would be recognized in profit or loss in t}

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables and Advances to R

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provi
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exi
amount of allowance for impairment based on avail

that have a significant tisk of

1ssets and liabilities within the

te acquired business and the
lidated financial statements at
uses estimates of future cash
ese estitnates would affect the
ment period adjustment. Any
1e subsequent period.

lated Parties

ded for specific and groups of
ts. The Group evaluates the
able facts and circumstances

affecting the collectability of the accounts, including, byt not limited to, the length of

the Group’s relationship with the counterparties, the
status based on known market forces, average age of a
and historical loss experience. The methodology and a

counterparties’ current credit
ccounts, collection experience
ssumptions used in estimating

future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences

between loss estimates and actual loss expetience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note
management, there are no impairment losses requir
Group’s advances to related parties.

Determining Net Realizable Valne of Real Estate, Golf and
Development Costs and Land For Future Development

the analysis of allowance for
6. Based on the evaluation of
ed to be recognized on the

Resort Shares For Sale, Property

In determining the net realizable value of real estate, golf and resort shares for sale,

property development costs and land for future dev
into account the most reliable evidence available at the

rlopment, management takes
times the estimates are made.

The future realization of the cartying amounts of these assets is affected by ptice

changes in the different market segments as well as

the trends in the real estate

industry. These are considered key sources of estimation and uncettainty and may

cause significant adjustments to the Group’s real esta
sale, property development costs and land for future
reporting period.

re, golf and resort shares for
development within the next

Considering the Group’s pricing policy, the net realizable values of real estate, golf

and resort shares for sale, property development

costs and land for future

development are higher than their related carrying values as of the end of the

reporting periods.
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(d) Fair Value of Stock Options

©

The Company estimates the fair value of the executive stock option by applying an

option valuation model, taking into account the terms

and conditions on which the

executive stock option were granted. The estimates and assumptions used include,
among other things, the option’s time of expiration, applicable risk-free interest rate,
expected dividend yield, volatility of the Company’s shate ptice and fair value of the
Company’s common shares. Changes in these factofs can affect the fair value of

stock options at grant date.

Estimating Useful Lives of Investment Property, Property and Hguipment and Development Righs

The Group estimates the useful lives of investm]

ent property, property and

equipment and development rights based on the petiod over which the assets are

expected to be available for use. The estimated useful

lives of investment propetty,

property and equipment and development tight are teviewed petiodically and are

updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or of
assets.

Based on management’s assessment as at June 30, 2
there are no changes in the estimated useful lives of th
reporting periods. Actual results, however, may vary
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Fair Valne Measurement of Investment Property

Investment property is measured using the cost mode].

due to physical weat and tear,

her limits on the use of the

117 and December 31, 2016,
bse assets as of the end of the

due to changes in estimates

The fair value disclosed in

Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements is defermined by the Group using
the discounted cash flows valuation technique since the information on current or
recent prices of assumptions underlying the discoumted cash flow approach of

investment property is not available. The Group uses
based on market conditions existing at the end of each

assumptions that are mainly
reporting period, such as: the

receipt of contractual rentals; expected future mprket rentals; void petiods;

maintenance requirements; and appropriate discount

rates. These valuations are

regularly compared to actual market yield data and actyal transactions by the Group

and those reported by the matket.
determined on the basis of current market rentals for 3
location and condition.

Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no |
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax as
2017 and December 31, 2016 will be fully utilized wit
availment.

The expected future market rentals are

imilar properties in the same

bf each reporting period and
bnger probable that sufficient
the deferred tax asset to be
sets recognized as at June 30,
hin the prescribed period of
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4,

(h) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRS requires that an impairment teview be perforn
indicators are present. The Group’s policy on e
non-financial assets is discussed in detail in Note
believes that the assumptions used in the estimation
consolidated financial statements are approptiate and A
in these assumptions may mmatetially affect the assessn]
any resulting impairment loss could have a material ad
operations.

hed when certain impairment
timating the impairment of
2.18. Though management
of fair values reflected in the
easonable, significant changes
ent of recoverable values and
lverse effect on the results of

No impairment losses were recognized on investments in associates, investment

propetty, propetty and equipment, development right

for the six-month period ended June 30, 2017 and year
(z) Valnation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost

and other non-financial assets
ended December 31, 2016.

of post-employment defined

benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in

calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include,
and salary rate increase. A significant change in any d
may generally affect the recognized expense, othet cor
and the carrying amount of the retirement benefit ob
period.

() Revenue Recognition Using the Percentage-of-Completion Methog

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method
gross profit on real estate sales. The use of the perc
requires the Group to estimate the portion complet]
such as costs incurred to date as a proportion of th|
project and estimates by engineers and other expetts.
assumptions or basis for estimation during the petiod.

(k) Basis for Revenue Recognition Benchmark

The Group recognizes its revenue from sale of real est3

the total contract price is received [see Note 2.15(a2)].

revenue recognition criterion on petrcentage of collectios

Group’s collection history from customers and number o

Buyer’s interest in the property is consideted to have veste
25% of the contract price has been received from the buyer

among others, discount rates
f these actuarial assumptions
nprehensive income ot losses
ligation in the next teporting

in accounting for its realized
entage-of-completion method
d using relevant information
e total budgeted cost of the
[here were no changes in the

te in full when 25% or more of
Management believes that the
1 is appropriate based on the
- back-out sales in priot yeats.

d when the payment of at least
and the Group has ascertained

the buyer’s commitment to complete the payment of the total contract price.

Seginent revenue and segment results for business

egments or geographical
segments, whichever is the enterprise’s primary basis of setment reporting.

The following table present revenue and income information fo
30, 2017 and 2016.

r the 2nd quarter ended June
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June 30, 2017

(Amonnt in thousands)

Sales of Real Hotel Service and
Estate Operations Rental Total
Revenue $2129.898  P186,890 P118,081  B2,434,869
Cost 1,109,777 124,989 49,243 1,284,009
Gross profit 1,020,121 61,901 68,838 1,150,860
Realized gross profit — net 490,171 - - 490,171
Realized gross profit £1,510,292 1961,901‘ P68,838 21,641,031
June 30, 2016
(Amount in thousands)
Sales of Real Hotel Setvice and
Estate Operations Rental Total
Revenue B2,123,408 B204,116 R91,456 £2,418,980
Cost 910,934 120,233 46,295 1,077,462
Gross profit 1,212,474 83,883 45,161 1,341,518
Realized gross profit — net 234416 - - 234,416
Realized gross profit £1,446,890 £83,883 B45,161, 21,575,934

5. Material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been reflected in
the financial statements for the period.

Thete have been no material events that happened subsequept to the interim period that
need disclosure herein.

6. Effect of changes in the composition of the enterprise during|the interim petiod, including
business combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiarie and long-term investments,

restructurings, and discontinuing operation.
Not applicable.

7. Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual balance sheet date

The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising [from the ordinary course of
business and from several of its joint venture agreements. The Group’s management and
legal counsels believe that the eventual liabilities under these lpwsuits or claims, if any, will
not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements, and thus, no provision
has been made for these contingent liabilities.

8. Existence of material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material to
an understanding of cutrent interim period.

There have been no material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are
material to an understanding of cutrent interim petiod.
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There have been no events that will trigger direct or continge
material to the company, including any default or acceleration d

10. ALl material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obl

obligations), and other relationships of the company with unj
petsons created during the reporting period.

There have been no material off-balance sheet transactions
company with unconsolidated entities or other petrsons created

P

q

11. Dividends paid separately for ordinaty shares and other shares

Not applicable.

Seasonality or cyclicality of interim operations
Not applicable

12.

13. Nature and amount of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, 1

are unusual because of their nature, size and incidence.
Not applicable

14.

There have been no issuance, repurchase and repayment of del

period.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

'The Group’s financial instruments comprise of cash, short-term bag

Exposures to credit and liquidity tisk atise in the normal couf
activities. The main objectives of the Group’s financial risk manage

1.
2.
3.

To identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basi
To minimize and mitigate such tisks; and
To provide a degree of cettainty about costs.

Credit Risk
The investment of the Group’s cash resources is managed so as to 1

enhance yield. The Group’s holding of cash and marketable seq
credit tisk of the counterparty if the counterparty is unwilling or uf

1223

e

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation|

nt financial obligations that is
f an obligation.

igations (including contingent

consolidated. entities or other

nd other relationships of the
during the reporting petiod.

het income, or cash flows that

Issuances, repurchases, and repayments of debt and equity securities

t and equity securities for the

1k deposits and investments.

se of the Group’s business
ment are as follows:

ninimize risk while seeking to
urities expose the Group to
hable to fulfill its obligations,

and the Group consequently suffers financial loss. Credit risk management involves entering

into financial instruments only with counterpatties with acceptable
policy sets aggregate credit limits of any one countetparty and af
limits and credit ratings of the counterpatties.

The Group has credit management policies in place to ensure tha
into with customers who have sufficient financial capacity and good

credit standing. The treasury

inually reviews the exposute

rental contracts are entered

credit history.
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Sales to buyets of real estate which are collectible on installment 4re relatively risk-free. Sales to

real estate buyers are documented under Contract to Sell agteements which allow cancellation of
the sale and forfeiture of payments made in the event of default|by buyers. Transfer of title is
made to buyers only upon full payment of the account.

Receivable balances are being monitored on a regular basis t¢ ensure timely execution of

necessary intervention efforts.
Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitor
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflow:

ng scheduled debt setvicing
due in a day-to-day business.

Liquidity needs are monitored in vatious time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week, as well as on the basis of a folling 30-day projection.
Long-term needs for a six-month and one-year petiod ate identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for
cash is invested in time deposits or short-term marketable secut
liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of q
the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

up to 60-day periods. Excess
ities. Funding for long-term
rommitted credit facilities and

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as some financial assets and liabilities

are fixed-interest bearing.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are cartied out in Philippine pesd
currency exchange rates arise from Group’s United States (U.S.)
cash equivalents.

Management assessed that the foreign cutrency risks related to
cash and cash equivalents to be not matetial.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES ANI

The Group’s capital management objectives ate to ensure the G
going concern and to provide an adequate teturn to shareholders.

The Group sets the amount of capital in propottion to its overall
and financial liabilities. The Group manages the capital structure 2

the light of changes in econotnic conditions and the risk character

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Groug
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shates or sell assets to red

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the cartying amount

face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital fq

teview is sumtnarized as follows:

s, its functional currency. The
dollar-denominated cash and

hese U.S. dollar-denominated

D PROCEDURES

oup’s ability to continue as a

inancing structure, i.e., equity
nd makes adjustments to it in
stics of the underlying assets.
may adjust the amount of
uce debt. ‘

of equity as presented on the
r the reporting periods undet
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(Fignres in thousands)

June 2017 December 2016

Total Liabilities P 17,165,109 P 16,884,328

Total Equity 28.369,705 27,501,028

Debt-to-equity ratio 0.61:1 0.61:1
CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. In de
financial assets and liabilities, the Company takes into account its

, or a liability settled, between
termining the fair value of its
urrent citcumstances and the

costs that would be incurred to exchange or settle the undetlying finnancial assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the categories of financial
in the consolidated financial statement of financial position ate shoy

Fignres in thousands

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Advances to related parties

Refundable deposits

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Advances from related parties
Due to joint venture partners
Redeemable preferred shares

Accrued interest on preferred shares

See notes to financial statements 2.4 and 2.10 for a description d
each category of financial instrument. A desctiption of the Group’
and policies for financial instruments is provided in page 41.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial asset:

issets and liabilities presented
wn below:

June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Values Values | Values Values

P 1,867,275 P 1,867,275 P 3,109,892 P 3,109,892

8,466,184 8,466,184 7,618,760 7,618,760

1,011,885 1,011,885 1,007,420 1,007,420

101,547 101,547 90,931 90,931

P 11,446,801 P 114468901 P____11827,003 P 11,827,003
June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Values Values | _ Values Values

P 3,599,198 P 3,599,198 P 3,927,083 P 3,927,083

2,372,561 2,372,561 1,913,250 1,913,250

557,180 557,180 525,335 525,335

378,547 378,547 471,058 471,058

1,257,988 1,257,988 1,257,988 1,257,988

132,461 132,461 118,113 118,113

E__8207,935 B 8,207,

P35 P 8,857,757 P 8,857,757

f the accounting policies for
5 risk management objectives

for speculative purposes.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

(Amount in Thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Advances to related parties
Real estate, golf and resort shares for sale-net
Property Development Costs
Prepayments and other current assets

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables - net
Advances to real estate property owners
Land for future development
Investment in associates
Investment Properties - net
Property and equipment - net
Other non-current assets

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Customer's deposit
Advances from related parties
Reserve for property development
Deferred income on real estate sales

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Customer's deposit
Dhue to joint venture partners
Redeemable preferred shares
Reserve for property development
Deferred income on real estate sales
Deferred tax liabilities-net
Retirement benefit obligation
Other non-current liabilities

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
EQUITY
Equity attributable to parent company's shareholder
Non-controlling interest

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Unaudited Audited

Jun-17 Dec-16
1,867,275 3,199,892
5,487,496 4,758,710
1,011,885 1,007,420
13,874,387 13,213,637
2,084,171 2,080,874
3,514,240 3,399,229
27,839,454 27,569,762
3,180,331 3,030,882
1,087,286 1,054,031
7,181,833 7,320,600
1,030,720 1,030,732
3,918,056 3,082,307
913,060 920,326
384,074 316,716
17,695,360 16,815,594
45,534,814 44,385,356
1,086,538 721,154
2,827,033 2,447,489
1,511,481 1,440,263
557,180 525,335
1,138,130 1,214,913
1,692,727 1,927,563
8,813,089 8,316,717
2,512,660 3,205,929
384,331 231,369
378,547 491,058
1,257,988 1,297,988
1,157,098 1,147,853
653,489 533,028
726,382 543,266
60,775 0,775
1,220,750 1,096,345
8,352,020 8,547,611
17,165,109 16,844,328
23,337,326 22,636,895
5,032,379 4,844,133
28,369,705 27,501,028
45,534,814 44,385,356

Annex A-1



GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD 2Q2017 VS. 2Q2016

(Amount in Thousands)

REVENUES
Real estate sales
Rental income
Hotel operations
Realized gross profit on prior year sale
Service income
Finance and other income

COST AND EXPENSES
Real estate sales
Cost of Services
Cost of hotel operations
Deferred gross profit on real estate sales
Operating expenses
Finance costs and other charges
Income tax expense

Net Profit (Loss)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Revaluation reserve

Total Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net profit (loss) attributable to:
Parent Company's shareholder
Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income(loss) attributable to:
Parent Company's shareholders
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share

Annex A-2
Unaudited 2Q 2017 Unaudited 2Q 2016
April - June January - June April - June January = June
987,183 2,129,898 999,347 2,123,408
28,626 55,611 13,849 38,744
74,324 18¢,890 101,319 204,116
247,738 490,171 94,354 234,416
31,262 62,470 35,403 52,712
141,755 242,465 151,786 204,998
1,510,888 3,161,505 1,396,058 2,858,394
482,863 1,109,777 458,768 910,934
20,345 49,243 30,009 46,295
58,976 124,989 72,860 120,233
196,464 353,745 248,415 613,079
245,066 514,661 194,704 431,350
10,279 51,324 27,235 51,982
141,468 286,736 107,883 219,219
1,155,461 2,497,475 1,139,874 2,393,092
355,427 670,030 256,184 465,302
355,427 670,030 256,184 465,302
364,954 690,732 220,035 396,307
(9,527) (24,702) 36,149 68,995
355,427 670,030 256,184 465,302
364,954 694,732 220,035 396,307
(9,527) (24,702) 36,149 68,995
355,427 670{030 256,184 465,302
0.0332 0.0629 0.0200 0.0361




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amount in Thousands)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
PARENT COMPANY

CAPITAL STOCK

ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAL

REVALUATION RESERVE

RETAINED EARNINGS

MINORITY INTEREST

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Annex A -3

2nd quarter |

2nd quarter

2017 2016
10,986,000 10,986,000
4,747,739 4,747,739

6017 8,288

7,59l670 6,308,507
73,337[326 72,050,534
5,032/379 4,561,650
28,369,705 26,612,184




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Annex A-4

(Amounts in Thousands)

Jun-17 Jun-16
~ Net Income before tax 956,766 684,521

Add(less)
Interest expense 37,468 24,930
Amortization of deferred interest 9,924 14,427
Depreciation and amortization 57,633 53,098
Share-based employee compensation 9,699 7,899
Interest income (16,966) (22,425)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of associates

and joint venture 11 (7)
Operating Income(loss) before working capital changes 1,054,535 762,443
Net Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Decrease(Increase) current and non current asset (1,758,356) (2,208,110)

(Decrease)Increase current and non current liabilities 380,842 1,134,590
Cash paid for income taxes (64,542) (17,363)
Interest paid (15,925) (31,510)
Cash from(used in) Operating Activities (403,446) {(359,950)
Cash from(used in) Investing Activities (732,080) (586,872)
Cash from (used in) Financing Activities {107,091) 864,988
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (1,242,617) (81,834)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 3,109,892 2,894,473
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 1,867,275 2,812,639
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